THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF DELAWARE COUNTY MET IN REGULAR SESSION ON THIS DATE WITH THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS PRESENT:

Present: Glenn A. Evans, Kristopher W. Jordan, James D. Ward

PUBLIC COMMENT

John R. Schuette, Concerns on Bonding

Phil Panzarella, Berlin Township Trustee asked Commissioners about progress of Outdoor Weather Warning System

Record of Comments available on CD of Official Minutes

(Additional Public comment later)

RESOLUTION NO. 08-924

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE RESOLUTIONS AND RECORDS OF THE PROCEEDINGS FROM REGULAR MEETING HELD AUGUST 4, 2008 AS CONTAINED IN THE COUNTY'S OFFICIAL ELECTRONIC RECORDINGS OF THE PROCEEDINGS:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Evans to approve the resolutions and records of the proceedings from regular meeting held August 4, 2008 as contained in the county's official electronic recordings of the proceedings.

Vote on Motion	Mr. Evans	Aye	Mr. Jordan	Aye	Mr. Ward	Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 08-925

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING PURCHASE ORDERS, VOUCHERS, THEN AND NOW CERTIFICATES, AND PAYMENT OF WARRANTS IN BATCH NUMBERS CMAPR0806:

It was moved by Mr. Evans, seconded by Mr. Ward to approve Then And Now Certificates, payment of warrants in batch numbers CMAPR0806 and Purchase Orders and Vouchers as listed below:

Vendor	Description	Account Number	<u>Amount</u>
PO's			
Pomante Contractors Inc.	DCHIP/Roof 55 E. Reindeer Dr.	23111711-5365	\$ 6,600.00
2 K General	Willis Building	60111901-5370	\$ 5,043.00
Increases			
Treasurer	Retainage CFOA	43111424-5410	\$ 5,500.00
Mt. Business Tech	Printing CSEA	23711630-5331	\$ 500.00
Facilities	Postage Services CSEA	23711630-5331	\$ 3,000.00
The Learning Center	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 20,000.00
Rhonda Huffman	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 5,000.00
Patricia Jones	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 11,500.00
Christina Tucker	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 20,000.00
T&J Junior Academy	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 20,000.00
Todays Learning Child	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 15,000.00
Nichole Otten	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 10,000.00
Arleen Sunkle	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 2,500.00
Decreases			
Come N Play Day Care	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 5,000.00
Del Area Career Center	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 15,000.00
Gingerbread House	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 15,000.00
Jellybean Junction	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 10,000.00
Kids Academy	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 10,000.00
Kindercare/Avery	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 5,000.00
Kindercare/Berry Leaf	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 5,000.00
Kindercare/S. Cleveland Ave.	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 5,000.00
Kindercare/Eastwind	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 10,000.00
Kindercare/Tara Hill Dr.	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 10,000.00
R Kids Count	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 10,000.00
Stepping Stones	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 10,000.00
Laura Black	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 5,000.00
Dawnya Coleman	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 20,000.00
Michelle Croy	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 5,000.00
Bobi Batho	Day Care	22411610-5348	\$ 1,000.00

Smokey Row	Day Care		2241161	0-5348	\$	7,500.00
New Dimensions	Day Care		2241161		\$	10,000.00
Amerikit	Day Care		2241161		\$	5,000.00
Theresa Mitchell	Day Care		2241161	0-5348	\$	5,000.00
Enchanted Care	Day Care		2241161		\$	10,000.00
YMCA	Day Care		2241161		\$	5,000.00
Kindercare/Westerview	Day Care		2241161		\$	7,500.00
OH School for the Deaf	Day Care		2241161	0-5348	\$	10,000.00
La Petite	Day Care		2241161		\$	10,000.00
Lil Tykes	Day Care		2241161		\$	10,000.00
Pamela Griffin	Day Care		2241161		\$	20,000.00
Nikou Inc.	Day Care		2241161		\$	40,000.00
Little Prep School	Day Care		2241161		\$	10,000.00
The Learning Center	Day Care		2241161		\$	10,000.00
The Learning Center	Day Care		2241161		\$	20,000.00
Kimberly Miller	Day Care		2241161		\$	15,000.00
World of Wonders	Day Care		2241161		\$	10,000.00
The Learning Center	Day Care		2241161		\$	20,000.00
The Learning Center	Day Care		2241161		\$	20,000.00
La Petite	Day Care		2241161		\$	10,000.00
New Dimensions	Day Care		2241161		\$	10,000.00
Treasure Chest	Day Care		2241161		\$	7,500.00
Lovena Harrison	Day Care		2241161		\$	5,000.00
Heather Husted	Day Care Day Care		2241161		\$ \$	5,000.00
Lane Ave.	Day Care Day Care		2241161		ֆ \$	10,000.00
Union Co. YMCA	Day Care Day Care		2241161		ֆ \$	10,000.00
	Day Care Day Care		2241161		ֆ \$	5,000.00
Mary Bennett Wanda Gaines	•					
	Day Care		2241161		\$ \$	5,000.00
Kindercare/Bethel Rd.	Day Care		2241161		\$ ¢	10,000.00
Kindercare/Kimberly Pkwy			2241161		\$ ¢	20,000.00
Todays Learning Child	Day Care		2241161		\$ ¢	10,000.00
Epworth	Day Care		2241161		\$ ¢	10,000.00
Flying Dozer	Day Care		2241161		\$	5,000.00
JCC	Day Care		2241161		\$ ¢	1,000.00
Elizabeth Terry	Day Care		2241161		\$	5,000.00
Educare Montesori	Day Care		2241161		\$	10,000.00
Elgin South	Day Care		2241161	0-3348	\$	10,000.00
Vouchers			((20020	7 5220	¢	0 545 06
AEP		rious Locations	6629030		\$	9,545.96
AEP		rious Locations	6629040		\$	47,230.43
Ameritas Group Dental	-	ums-Aug Invoice	7501090		\$	21,881.60
ACI	Site Work/		4311142		\$	28,404.40
Limbach	HVAC/CF		4311142		\$	44,500.00
Royal Electric	Electric/CF		4311142		\$	86,580.65
ACI		ades CFOA	4311142		\$	32,015.19
Trak Engineering Inc.		gement/Maint. Ag			\$	5,185.00
Thomas & Company LPA	BWC Lega		7511090		\$	6,132.50
Thomas & Company LPA	BWC Lega		7511090		\$	5,287.73
Thomas & Company LPA	BWC Lega		7511090		\$	3,008.00
Thomas & Company LPA	BWC Lega		7511090		\$	3,872.14
Thomas & Company LPA	BWC Lega		7511090		\$	3,876.40
Thomas & Company LPA	BWC Lega		7511090		\$	1,986.00
Thomas & Company LPA	BWC Lega		7511090		\$	3,178.00
Thomas & Company LPA	BWC Lega		7511090		\$	4,362.00
JC & Son Builders		ome Repairs	2311171		\$	2,700.00
Genoa Twp. Bd. of Trustee		f facility & equip			\$	8,000.00
CCAO SC	Gas Utility	7	1001110	5-5338	\$	11,340.27
Memo Transfer Voucher	S					
From	То					
CSEA	Commissio		July 08 F	Rent	\$	7,520.17
23711630-5335	10011101-	4233				
Vote on Motion	Mr. Jordan	Aye Mr. Ev	vans Aye	Mr. War	d	Aye
		IVII. L.V		ul		

RESOLUTION NO. 08-926

IN THE MATTER OF DESIGNATING AUGUST AS CHILD SUPPORT AWARENESS MONTH IN

DELAWARE COUNTY:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Evans to approve the following:

WHEREAS, parenting and child support go hand in hand in ensuring children grow up safe and healthy, and children and families stay out of poverty; and

WHEREAS, ensuring that children receive the financial support they deserve involves working partnerships between county, state and federal agencies, parents, legislators, judges, healthcare professionals, advocacy groups, employers and many others; and

WHEREAS, through these partnerships, Ohio collected nearly two billion dollars, continuing to lead the nation in dollars collected on non-public assistance child support orders in 2007, and

WHEREAS, through the leadership of *Delaware* County Child Support Enforcement Agency, many children's lives are brighter because of the following accomplishments in the past year:

Collected \$20,167,786.01 for 2007

In March of 2008 DCCSEA broke the highest collection in one month record with \$1,835,450.20 and then did it again in May 2008 with \$1,875,315.75 collected.

At the OCS Spring Conference 2008 DCCSEA the agency received awards for Best Performance Collections on current Support and Best Overall Performance. DCCSEA also won the award for Total Disbursement per Total Full Time Employees. For every dollar the agency spent the agency collected \$13.40.

WHEREAS, with the recognition of the above successes comes the acknowledgment that our children's lives count enough to pursue every possible effort to ensure that Ohio children receive the financial support they deserve.

NOW, THEREFORE, WE, The Delaware County Board of Commissioners of **Delaware** County, Ohio, do hereby designate, in conjunction with the State of Ohio,

AUGUST 2008 CHILD SUPPORT AWARENESS MONTH

"Parenting and Child Support go hand-in-hand."

In Delaware County we encourage everyone to promote the partnerships needed in raising happy and healthy children and to help ensure that the children of Delaware County receive the support they deserve.

Vote on Motion Mr. Jordan Aye Mr. Evans Aye Mr. Ward Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 08-927

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING PERSONNEL ACTIONS:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Evans to approve the following:

Elizabeth Hart is resigning her position with the Child Support Enforcement Agency; effective date July 25, 2008.

Vote on Motion Mr. Jordan Aye Mr. Evans Aye Mr. Ward Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 08-928

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING A TRANSFER OF FUNDS FOR WORKER'S COMPENSATION:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Evans to approve the following:

Whereas, Resolution 08-749 Approved A Transfer Of Funds For Worker's Compensation To Fund 75110902-4650 Providing A Short Term Advance From The Commissioners General Fund 10011102-5850.

Further Be It Resolved, That The Commissioners Approve The Transfer Of \$243,000 Back Into The County's General Fund 10011102-5850.

Transfer of Funds

From 75110902-5850 Workers Compensation				\$243,00	00.00	
Vote on Motion	Mr. Ward	Aye	Mr. Jordan	Aye	Mr. Evans	Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 08-929

IN THE MATTER OF APPOINTING M. BRAD REYNOLDS AS THE DELAWARE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' REPRESENTATIVE TO THE DELAWARE - MORROW COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH & RECOVERY SERVICES BOARD:

It was moved by Mr. Evans, seconded by Mr. Ward to approve the following:

Whereas, The Board of Commissioners of Delaware County is responsible to make appointments from the public to various boards, councils and committees, and

Whereas, The Board of Commissioners of Delaware County shall appoint an individual to the Delaware-Morrow County Mental Health and Recovery Services Board. M. Brad Reynolds will be appointed to fill an unexpired four year term beginning August 7, 2008 and ending August 6, 2012;

Therefore, be it resolved that the Board of Commissioners at Delaware County, State of Ohio, appoint M. Brad Reynolds to fill an unexpired four year term beginning on August 7, 2008 and ending on August 6, 2012 to the Delaware-Morrow County Mental Health and Recovery Board.

Vote on Motion	Mr. Evans	Aye	Mr. Jordan	Aye	Mr. Ward	Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 08-930

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING A CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE DELAWARE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND RACCOON VALLEY PARTNERS, LLC FOR AN ANALYSIS AND REPORT REGARDING THE PROPOSED INTERCHANGE ON I-71 IN BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Evans to approve the following:

CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

ANALYSIS AND REPORT REGARDING PROPOSED I-71 INTERCHANGE IN BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP

<u>Section 1 – Parties to the Agreement:</u>

Agreement made and entered into this 7th day of August, 2008, by and between the Delaware County Board of Commissioners, Delaware County, Ohio ("County"), and the firm of Raccoon Valley Partners, LLC, 3708 Raccoon Valley Road, Granville, OH 43023 ("Consultant").

Section 2 - Contract Administrator:

The County hereby designates the Delaware County Administrator as Administrator and agent of the County in performance of Work performed under this Agreement. The Administrator shall have general supervision of the Work and authority to order commencement or suspension of Work.

Section 3 – Scope of Services (Work):

Consultant agrees to coordinate an evaluation and analysis of development proposals with certain parties affected by or interested in a proposed interchange on I-71 in Berkshire Township, Delaware County, Ohio, parties to include existing landowners, developers, and all public agencies that are or would be involved in the related transportation and land use issues. Consultant agrees to submit a report based on its evaluation and analysis, which shall, at a minimum define and recommend financing methods for any necessary new interchanges or arterial road improvements in such a way as to serve both existing development and land yet to be developed. The primary goal would be to maximize Delaware County economic development while minimizing roadway expenditures. Consultant further agrees to perform the Work promptly and in a skillfully competent manner under the direction of the Administrator and in accordance with generally accepted professional engineering standards.

Consultant shall not perform any "professional design services," as that term is defined in section 153.65 of the Revised Code.

Section 4 – Compensation:

Compensation for Work performed under this Agreement shall be based on an hourly rate of \$150/hour billable in one-tenth hour increments, for a total not to exceed \$25,000, unless consented to by the County pursuant to Section 13.2 of this Agreement. Consultant may bill at the hourly rate for any travel time in furtherance of the Work. Consultant shall be entitled to reimbursement for additional expenses only with written authorization of the

Administrator.

Section 5 – Payment:

Compensation shall be paid based upon invoices submitted to the Administrator by the Consultant on company letterhead clearly identified as an invoice with a sequential number provided. The County may request additional documentation substantiating said invoices, and the Consultant shall promptly submit documentation as needed to substantiate said invoices. The County shall pay approved invoices within 30 days of receipt.

Section 6 - Completion of Work, Delays and Extensions:

All Work associated with this Agreement shall be completed by the Consultant, as quickly as possible is feasible. In the event that unforeseen and unavoidable delays prevent the timely completion of the Work provided under this Agreement, the Consultant may make a written request for time extension, and the Administrator may grant such an extension provided adherence to all other terms of the Agreement.

Section 7 - Insurance:

- 7.1 <u>General Liability Coverage</u>: Consultant shall maintain commercial general liability insurance of \$1,000,000 each occurrence with an annual aggregate of \$2,000,000. Identical coverage shall be required to be provided by all subcontractors, if any.
- 7.2 <u>Automobile Liability Coverage</u>: Consultant shall maintain automobile liability insurance of \$1,000,000 each accident. Such coverage shall include coverage for owned, hired and non-owned automobiles. Identical coverage shall be required to be provided by all subcontractors, if any.
- 7.3 <u>Workers' Compensation Coverage</u>: Consultant shall maintain workers' compensation coverage as required by the laws of the State of Ohio. Identical coverage shall be required to be provided by all subcontractors, if any.
- 7.4 <u>Additional Insureds</u>: The County, its elected officials and employees, shall be named as additional insureds with respect to all activities under this Agreement in the policies required by Subsections 7.1 and 7.2. Consultant shall require all of its subcontractors, if any, to provide like endorsements.
- 7.5 <u>Proof of Insurance</u>: Prior to the commencement of any work under this Agreement, Consultant, and all of its subcontractors, shall furnish the County with properly executed certificates of insurance for all insurance required by this Agreement. Certificates of insurance shall provide that such insurance shall not be cancelled without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the County. Consultant will replace certificates for any insurance expiring prior to completion of work under this Agreement.

Section 8 – Indemnification:

The Consultant shall indemnify and hold free and harmless the County and its employees from any and all damages, injury, costs, expenses, judgments or decrees, or any other liabilities that they may incur as a result of bodily injury, sickness, disease or death or injury to or destruction of tangible property including the loss of use resulting therefrom, to the extent caused in whole or part by any negligent acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant, its employees, agents, subcontractors, and their employees and agents' subcontractors and their employees or any other person for whose acts any of them may be liable.

Section 9 – Termination of Agreement:

The County may terminate this Agreement at any time for the convenience of the County, at which time the County shall provide written notice to the Consultant ordering termination of Work. The Consultant shall immediately terminate Work and submit a final invoice within sixty (60) days of receiving Notice of Termination for Work completed up to the date of termination. The County is not liable for payment for work performed after the date of termination.

Section 10 – Change in Scope of Work:

In the event that significant changes to the Scope of Services as defined in Section 3 are required during performance of the Work, the first party shall notify the second party in writing with a detailed explanation of the circumstances believed to have changed beyond those originally contemplated by this Agreement. Any subsequent modifications to this Agreement shall be approved by both parties.

Section 11 – Ownership of Documents:

Upon completion or termination of the Agreement, the Consultant shall provide copies to the County of all documents created specifically for the purposes of Work under this Agreement. The County shall have ownership of said documents, which are considered, but not limited to, any tangible written or electronic work, whether complete or incomplete, produced in accordance with the Agreement. This section does not require unauthorized duplication of copyrighted materials.

Section 12 - Change of Consultant Staff Assigned to the Work:

The Consultant shall notify the County, within seven (7) days and in writing, of any change to Consultant's staff members or any subconsultants assigned to the Work as contemplated at the time of executing this Agreement.

Section 13 - Miscellaneous Terms & Conditions:

- 13.1 <u>Prohibited Interests</u>: Consultant agrees that no agent, officer, or employee of the County during his/her tenure or for one year there after shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof. Consultant further agrees that it will not employ in any manner a current County employee for a minimum period of one (1) year from the completion date of this project, without the prior express written consent of County.
- 13.2 <u>Entire Agreement</u>: This Agreement, and those documents incorporated by reference herein, shall constitute the entire understanding and agreement between the County and the Consultant, shall supersede all prior understandings and agreements relating to the subject matter hereof, and may only be amended in writing with the mutual consent and agreement of the parties.
- 13.3 <u>Governing Law</u>: This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Ohio. Any and all legal disputes arising from this Agreement shall be filed in and heard before the courts of Delaware County, Ohio.
- 13.4 <u>Headings</u>: The subject headings of the Sections and Subsections in this Agreement are included for purposes of convenience only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of any of its provisions. This Agreement shall be deemed to have been drafted by both parties and no purposes of interpretation shall be made to the contrary.
- 13.5 <u>Waivers</u>: No waiver of breach of any provision of this Agreement shall in any way constitute a waiver of any prior, concurrent, subsequent, or future breach of this Agreement or any other provision hereof. No term or provision of this Agreement shall be deemed waived, and no breach excused, unless such a waiver or consent is expressly made in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented. Such waiver shall not constitute and shall not in any way be interpreted as a waiver of any other term or provision or future breach unless said waiver expressly states an intention to waive another specific term or provision or future breach.
- 13.6 <u>Severability</u>: If any item, condition, portion, or section of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person, premises, or circumstance shall to any extent, be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder hereof and the application of such term, condition, provision, or section to persons, premises, or circumstances other than those as to whom it shall be held invalid or unenforceable shall not be affected thereby, and this Agreement and all the terms, conditions, provisions, or sections hereof shall, in all other respects, continue to be effective and to be complied with.
- 13.7 <u>Findings for Recovery</u>: Consultant certifies that it has no outstanding findings for recovery pending or issued against it by the State of Ohio.
- 13.8 <u>Homeland Security</u>: Consultant certifies that it does not provide material assistance to any organization on the United States Department of State Terrorist Exclusion list. Pursuant to R.C. § 2909.33, Consultant agrees to make such certification by completing the declaration of material assistance/nonassistance described in R.C. § 2909.33(A) and understands that this Agreement is contingent upon full completion of such certificate and "No" being the response to all questions in the Declaration portion of the certificate. Such certification is attached to this Agreement and by this reference made a part of this Agreement.
- 13.9 <u>Non-Discrimination/Equal Opportunity</u>: Consultant hereby certifies that, in the hiring of employees for the performance of work under this Agreement or any subcontract, that neither it nor any subcontractor, by reason of race, color, religion, sex, age, disability as defined in section 4112.01 of the Revised Code, national origin, or ancestry, shall discriminate against any citizen of this state in the employment of a person qualified and available to perform the work to which the Agreement relates.

Consultant further certifies that neither it nor any subcontractor, or person acting on behalf of it or any subcontractor, in any manner, shall discriminate against, intimidate, or retaliate against any employee hired for the performance of work under this Agreement on account of race, color, religion, sex, age, disability as defined in section 4112.01 of the Revised Code, national origin, or ancestry.

Consultant certifies that it has a written affirmative action program for employment and effectively utilizes economically disadvantaged persons, as referred to in division (E)(1) of section 122.71 of the Revised Code.

Consultant certifies that it complies with all applicable laws regarding Non-Discrimination / Equal Opportunity and will not discriminate.

13.10 <u>Campaign Finance – Compliance with R.C. 3517.13</u>: Ohio Revised Code Section 3517.13 I(3) and J(3) requires that no political subdivision shall award any contract for the purchase of goods with a cost aggregating more than ten thousand dollars in a calendar year or services with a cost aggregating more than ten thousand dollars in a corporation, business trust, individual, partnership or other unincorporated business, association, including, without limitation, a professional association organized under Chapter 1785 of the Revised Code, estate, or trust unless the political subdivision has received for that calendar year, or the contract includes, a certification that the individuals named in Revised Code

Sections 3517.13(I)(1) and (J)(1) are in compliance with the aforementioned provisions. The Contractor/Provider, therefore, is required to complete the attached certificate/affidavit entitled "Certification/Affidavit in Compliance With O.R.C. Section 3517.13." Failure to complete and submit the required aforementioned certificate/affidavit with the Contract will prohibit the County from entering, proceeding, and/or performing the Contract. Such certification is attached to this Contract and by this reference made a part thereof.

13.11 <u>Independent Contractor</u>: Consultant agrees that no agency, employment, joint venture, or partnership has been or will be created between the parties hereto pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Consultant also agrees that, as an independent contractor, it assumes all responsibility for any federal, state, municipal, or other tax liabilities along with workers compensation, unemployment compensation, and insurance premiums which may accrue as a result of compensation received for services or deliverables rendered hereunder.

Vote on Motion Mr. Jordan Aye Mr. Evans Aye Mr. Ward Aye

PUBLIC COMMENT; Concerns on Bonds

Tommy Thompson Roger Van Sickle Ken O'Brien

Record of Comments available on CD of Official Minutes

RESOLUTION NO. 08-931

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF BONDS IN THE MAXIMUM PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF \$31,000,000 FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE COSTS OF CONSTRUCTING, EQUIPPING AND FURNISHING A NEW COUNTY JUSTICE FACILITY TO PROVIDE COURTROOMS, OFFICE SPACE, MEETING ROOMS, EQUIPMENT AND STORAGE SPACE, AND RELATED PARKING FACILITIES, ACQUIRING ANY NECESSARY INTERESTS IN REAL PROPERTY, AND IMPROVING THE SITE THEREOF, TOGETHER WITH ALL NECESSARY AND RELATED APPURTENANCES THERETO.

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Evans to approve the following:

WHEREAS, the County Auditor, as fiscal officer of this County, has certified to this Board that the estimated life or period of usefulness of the Improvement described in Section 2 is at least five (5) years and the estimated maximum maturity of the Bonds described in Section 2 is at least twenty-five (25) years;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Delaware, State of Ohio, that:

<u>Section 1</u>. <u>Definitions and Interpretation</u>. In addition to the words and terms elsewhere defined in this Resolution, unless the context or use clearly indicates another or different meaning or intent:

"Annual Information" means annual financial information and operating data of the type to be specified in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate in accordance with the Rule.

"Authorized Denominations" means the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple in excess thereof.

"Bond proceedings" means, collectively, this Resolution, the Certificate of Award, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and such other proceedings of the County, including the Bonds, that provide collectively for, among other things, the rights of holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds.

"Bond Register" means all books and records necessary for the registration, exchange and transfer of Bonds as provided in Section 5.

"Bond Registrar" means a bank or trust company authorized to do business in the State and designated by the County Administrator in the Certificate of Award pursuant to Section 4 as the initial authenticating agent, bond registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the Bonds under the Registrar Agreement and until a successor Bond Registrar shall have become such pursuant to the provisions of the Registrar Agreement and, thereafter, *"Bond Registrar"* shall mean the successor Bond Registrar.

"Bonds" means, collectively, the Serial Bonds and the Term Bonds, each as is designated as such in the Certificate of Award.

"Book entry form" or *"book entry system"* means a form or system under which (a) the ownership of book entry interests in Bonds and the principal of and interest on the Bonds may be transferred only through a book entry, and (b) physical Bond certificates in fully registered form are issued by the County only to a Depository or its nominee

as registered owner, with the Bonds "immobilized" in the custody of the Depository or its designated agent. The book entry maintained by others than the County is the record that identifies the owners of book entry interests in those Bonds and that principal and interest.

"Certificate of Award" means the certificate authorized by Section 6, to be executed by the County Administrator, setting forth and determining those terms or other matters pertaining to the Bonds and their issuance, sale and delivery as this Resolution requires or authorizes to be set forth or determined therein.

"Clerk" means the Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners.

"Closing Date" means the date of physical delivery of, and payment of the purchase price for, the Bonds.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, the Regulations (whether temporary or final) under that Code or the statutory predecessor of that Code, and any amendments of, or successor provisions to, the foregoing and any official rulings, announcements, notices, procedures and judicial determinations regarding any of the foregoing, all as and to the extent applicable. Unless otherwise indicated, reference to a Section of the Code includes any applicable successor section or provision and such applicable Regulations, rulings, announcements, notices, procedures and determinations pertinent to that Section.

"Continuing Disclosure Certificate" means the certificate authorized by Section 9(c), to be substantially in the form on file with the Clerk, and which, together with the agreements of the County set forth in that subsection, shall constitute the continuing disclosure agreement (the *"Continuing Disclosure Agreement"*) made by the County for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds in accordance with the Rule.

"County" means Delaware County, Ohio.

"County Administrator" means the County Administrator of the County.

"County Auditor" means the County Auditor of the County.

"Depository" means any securities depository that is a clearing agency under federal law operating and maintaining, with its Participants or otherwise, a book entry system to record ownership of book entry interests in Bonds or the principal of and interest on Bonds, and to effect transfers of Bonds, in book entry form, and includes and means initially The Depository Trust Company (a limited purpose trust company), New York.

"Interest Payment Dates" means June 1 and December 1 of each year that the Bonds are outstanding, commencing on the date specified in the Certificate of Award.

"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board established by the SEC.

"NRMSIR" means each nationally recognized municipal securities information repository designated from time to time by the SEC in accordance with the Rule.

"Original Purchaser" means the purchaser of the Bonds specified in the Certificate of Award.

"Participant" means any participant contracting with a Depository under a book entry system and includes securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies, and clearing corporations.

"Principal Payment Dates" means December 1 in each of the years from and including 2009 to and including 2033, provided that the first Principal Payment Date may be deferred up to one year and the last Principal Payment Date may be advanced up to five years, which determination shall be made by the County Administrator in the Certificate of Award in such manner as to be in the best interest of and financially advantageous to the County and further provided that in no case shall the final Principal Payment Date exceed the maximum maturity of the Bonds referred to in the preambles hereto.

"Purchase Agreement" means the Bond Purchase Agreement between the County and the Original Purchaser, as it may be modified from the form on file with the Clerk and executed by the County Administrator, all in accordance with Section 6.

"Registrar Agreement" means the Bond Registrar Agreement between the County and the Bond Registrar, as it may be modified from the form on file with the Clerk and executed by the County Auditor, all in accordance with Section 4.

"Regulations" means Treasury Regulations issued pursuant to the Code or to the statutory predecessor of the Code.

"Rule" means Rule 15c2-12 prescribed by the SEC pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

"SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

"Serial Bonds" means those Bonds designated as such and maturing on the dates set forth in the Certificate of Award, bearing interest payable on each Interest Payment Date and not subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption.

"SID" means the state information depository, if any, with which filings are required to be made by the County in accordance with the Rule.

"Specified Events" means the occurrence of any of the following events, within the meaning of the Rule, with respect to the Bonds, as applicable: principal and interest payment delinquencies; non-payment related defaults; unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the Bonds; modifications to rights of holders or beneficial owners of the Bonds; Bond calls; defeasances; release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds; and rating changes. The repayment of the Bonds is not secured by a lien on any property capable of release or sale or for which other property may be substituted.

"State" means the State of Ohio.

"Term Bonds" means those Bonds designated as such and maturing on the date or dates set forth in the Certificate of Award, bearing interest payable on each Interest Payment Date and subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption.

The captions and headings in this Resolution are solely for convenience of reference and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any Sections, subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs or clauses hereof. Reference to a Section means a section of this Resolution unless otherwise indicated.

Section 2. Authorized Principal Amount and Purpose; Application of Proceeds. It is necessary and determined to be in the County's best interest to issue bonds of this County in the maximum principal amount of \$31,000,000 (the "Bonds") for the purpose of paying the costs of constructing, equipping and furnishing a new County justice facility to provide courtrooms, office space, meeting rooms, equipment and storage space, and related parking facilities, acquiring any necessary interests in real property, and improving the site thereof, together with all necessary and related appurtenances thereto (the "Improvement"). The Bonds shall be issued pursuant to Chapter 133 of the Ohio Revised Code, this Resolution and the Certificate of Award.

The aggregate principal amount of Bonds to be issued shall not exceed the maximum principal amount specified in this Section 2 and shall be an amount determined by the County Administrator in the Certificate of Award to be the aggregate principal amount of Bonds that is required to be issued at this time for the purpose stated in this Section 2, taking into account the costs of the Improvement, the estimated financing costs and the interest rates on the Bonds.

The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds received by the County (or withheld by the Original Purchaser on behalf of the County) shall be paid into the proper fund or funds, and those proceeds are appropriated and shall be used for the purpose for which the Bonds are being issued. The Purchase Agreement may authorize the Original Purchaser to withhold certain proceeds from the sale of the Bonds to provide for the payment of certain financing costs on behalf of the County. Any portion of those proceeds received by the County (after payment of those financing costs) representing premium and accrued interest shall be paid into the Bond Retirement Fund.

Section 3. Denominations; Dating; Principal and Interest Payment and Redemption Provisions. The Bonds shall be issued in one lot and only as fully registered bonds, in the Authorized Denominations, but in no case as to a particular maturity date exceeding the principal amount maturing on that date. The Bonds shall be dated as provided in the Certificate of Award, provided that their dated date shall not be more than sixty (60) days prior to the Closing Date.

(a) <u>Interest Rates and Payment Dates</u>. The Bonds shall bear the rate or rates of interest per year (computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months), as shall be determined by the County Administrator, subject to subsection (c) of this Section, in the Certificate of Award; provided, that the Bonds of any one stated maturity all shall bear the same rate of interest. Interest on the Bonds shall be payable at such rate or rates on the Interest Payment Dates until the principal amount has been paid or provided for. The Bonds shall bear interest from the most recent date to which interest has been paid or provided for or, if no interest has been paid or provided for, from their date.

(b) <u>Principal Payment Schedule</u>. The Bonds shall mature or be payable pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements (as hereinafter defined and described) on the Principal Payment Dates in principal amounts as shall be determined, subject to subsection (c) of this Section, in the Certificate of Award, which determination shall be consistent with the best interest of and financial advantages to the County.

Consistent with the foregoing and in accordance with the determination of the best interest of and financial advantages to the County, the County Administrator shall specify in the Certificate of Award (i) the aggregate principal amount of Bonds to be issued as Serial Bonds, the Principal Payment Date or Dates on which those Bonds shall be stated to mature and the principal amount thereof that shall be stated to mature on each such Principal Payment Date, and (ii) the aggregate principal amount of Bonds to be issued as Term Bonds, the Principal Payment

Date or Dates on which those Bonds shall be stated to mature, the principal amount thereof that shall be stated to mature on each such Principal Payment Date, the Principal Payment Date or Dates on which Term Bonds shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption (each a "*Mandatory Redemption Date*") and the principal amount thereof that shall be payable pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements (as defined below) on each Mandatory Redemption Date.

(c) <u>Conditions for Establishment of Interest Rates and Principal Payment Dates and Amounts</u>. The rate or rates of interest per year to be borne by the Bonds, and the principal amount of Bonds maturing or payable pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements (as defined below) on each Principal Payment Date, shall be such that the total principal and interest payments on the Bonds in any fiscal year in which principal is payable is not more than three times the amount of those payments in any other fiscal year. The net interest rate per year for the Bonds determined by taking into account the respective principal amounts of the Bonds and terms to maturity or mandatory sinking fund redemption of those principal amounts of Bonds shall not exceed 6.00% per year.

(d) <u>Payment of Debt Charges</u>. The debt charges on the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America without deduction for the services of the Bond Registrar as paying agent. Principal of and any premium on the Bonds shall be payable when due upon presentation and surrender of the Bonds at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar. Interest on a Bond shall be paid on each Interest Payment Date by check or draft mailed to the person in whose name the Bond was registered, and to that person's address appearing, on the Bond Register at the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding that Interest Payment Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if and so long as the Bonds are issued in a book entry system, principal of and interest and any premium on the Bonds shall be payable in the manner provided in any agreement entered into by the County Auditor, in the name and on behalf of the County, in connection with the book entry system.

(e) <u>Redemption Provisions</u>. The Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to stated maturity as follows:

(i) <u>Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption of Term Bonds</u>. If any of the Bonds are issued as Term Bonds, the Term Bonds shall be subject to mandatory redemption in part by lot and be redeemed pursuant to mandatory sinking fund redemption requirements, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount redeemed, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, on the applicable Mandatory Redemption Dates and in the principal amounts payable on those Dates, for which provision is made in the Certificate of Award (such Dates and amounts being referred to as the "Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements").

The aggregate of the moneys to be deposited with the Bond Registrar for payment of principal of and interest on any Term Bonds on each Mandatory Redemption Date shall include an amount sufficient to redeem on that Date the principal amount of Term Bonds payable on that Date pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements (less the amount of any credit as hereinafter provided).

The County shall have the option to deliver to the Bond Registrar for cancellation Term Bonds in any aggregate principal amount and to receive a credit against the then current or any subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligation) of the County, as specified by the County Auditor, for Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date as the Term Bonds so delivered. That option shall be exercised by the County on or before the 15th day preceding any Mandatory Redemption Date with respect to which the County wishes to obtain a credit, by furnishing the Bond Registrar a certificate, signed by the County Auditor, setting forth the extent of the credit to be applied with respect to the then current or any subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement for Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date. If the certificate is not timely furnished to the Bond Registrar, the current Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligation) shall not be reduced. A credit against the then current or any subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligation), as specified by the County Auditor, also shall be received by the County for any Term Bonds which prior thereto have been redeemed (other than through the operation of the applicable Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements) or purchased for cancellation and canceled by the Bond Registrar, to the extent not applied theretofore as a credit against any Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement, for Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date as the Term Bonds so redeemed or purchased and canceled.

Each Term Bond so delivered, or previously redeemed, or purchased and canceled, shall be credited by the Bond Registrar at 100% of the principal amount thereof against the then current or subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligations), as specified by the County Auditor, for Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date as the Term Bonds so delivered, redeemed or purchased and canceled.

(ii) <u>Optional Redemption</u>. The Bonds of the maturities specified in the Certificate of Award shall be subject to optional redemption by and at the sole option of the County, in whole or in part in integral multiples of \$5,000, on the dates and at the redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount to be redeemed), plus accrued interest to the redemption date, to be determined by the County Administrator in the Certificate of Award; provided that the earliest optional redemption date shall not be

later than December 1, 2019, and the redemption price for the earliest optional redemption date shall not be greater than 103%.

If optional redemption of Term Bonds at a redemption price exceeding 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed is to take place as of any Mandatory Redemption Date applicable to those Term Bonds, the Term Bonds, or portions thereof, to be redeemed optionally shall be selected by lot prior to the selection by lot of the Term Bonds of the same maturity to be redeemed on the same date by operation of the Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements. Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to this paragraph shall be redeemed only upon written notice from the County Auditor to the Bond Registrar, given upon the direction of this Board by adoption of a resolution. That notice shall specify the redemption date and the principal amount of each maturity of Bonds to be redeemed, and shall be given at least 45 days prior to the redemption date or such shorter period as shall be acceptable to the Bond Registrar.

Partial Redemption. If fewer than all of the outstanding Bonds are called for optional redemption at one time and Bonds of more than one maturity are then outstanding, the Bonds that are called shall be Bonds of the maturity or maturities selected by the County. If fewer than all of the Bonds of a single maturity are to be redeemed, the selection of Bonds of that maturity to be redeemed, or portions thereof in amounts of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, shall be made by the Bond Registrar by lot in a manner determined by the Bond Registrar. In the case of a partial redemption of Bonds by lot when Bonds of denominations greater than \$5,000 are then outstanding, each \$5,000 unit of principal thereof shall be treated as if it were a separate Bond of the denomination of \$5,000. If it is determined that one or more, but not all, of the \$5,000 units of principal amount represented by a Bond are to be called for redemption, then, upon notice of redemption of a \$5,000 unit or units, the registered owner of that Bond shall surrender the Bond to the Bond Registrar (A) for payment of the redemption price of the \$5,000 unit or units of principal amount called for redemption (including, without limitation, the interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption and any premium), and (B) for issuance, without charge to the registered owner, of a new Bond or Bonds of any Authorized Denomination or Denominations in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unmatured and unredeemed portion of, and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date as, the Bond surrendered.

(iv) <u>Notice of Redemption</u>. The notice of the call for redemption of Bonds shall identify (A) by designation, letters, numbers or other distinguishing marks, the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, (B) the redemption price to be paid, (C) the date fixed for redemption, and (D) the place or places where the amounts due upon redemption are payable. The notice shall be given by the Bond Registrar on behalf of the County by mailing a copy of the redemption notice by first-class mail, postage prepaid, at least 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption, to the registered owner of each Bond subject to redemption in whole or in part at the registered owner's address shown on the Bond Register maintained by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the 15th day preceding that mailing. Failure to receive notice by mail or any defect in that notice regarding any Bond, however, shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any Bond.

(v) Payment of Redeemed Bonds. In the event that notice of redemption shall have been given by the Bond Registrar to the registered owners as provided above, there shall be deposited with the Bond Registrar on or prior to the redemption date, moneys that, in addition to any other moneys available therefor and held by the Bond Registrar, will be sufficient to redeem at the redemption price thereof, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, all of the redeemable Bonds for which notice of redemption has been given. Notice having been mailed in the manner provided in the preceding paragraph hereof, the Bonds and portions thereof called for redemption shall become due and payable on the redemption date, and, subject to the provisions of Sections 3(d) and 5, upon presentation and surrender thereof at the place or places specified in that notice, shall be paid at the redemption price, plus accrued interest to the redemption date. If moneys for the redemption of all of the Bonds and portions thereof to be redeemed, together with accrued interest thereon to the redemption date, are held by the Bond Registrar on the redemption date, so as to be available therefor on that date and, if notice of redemption has been deposited in the mail as aforesaid, then from and after the redemption date those Bonds and portions thereof called for redemption shall cease to bear interest and no longer shall be considered to be outstanding. If those moneys shall not be so available on the redemption date, or that notice shall not have been deposited in the mail as aforesaid, those Bonds and portions thereof shall continue to bear interest, until they are paid, at the same rate as they would have borne had they not been called for redemption. All moneys held by the Bond Registrar for the redemption of particular Bonds shall be held in trust for the account of the registered owners thereof and shall be paid to them, respectively, upon presentation and surrender of those Bonds.

Section 4. Execution and Authentication of Bonds; Appointment of Bond Registrar. The Bonds shall be signed by at least two members of the Board of County Commissioners and the County Auditor, in the name of the County and in their official capacities, provided that any or all of those signatures may be a facsimile. The Bonds shall be issued in the Authorized Denominations and numbers as requested by the Original Purchaser and approved by the County Administrator, shall be numbered as determined by the County Administrator in order to distinguish each Bond from any other Bond and shall express upon their faces the purpose, in summary terms, for which they are issued and that they are issued pursuant to this Resolution.

The County Administrator is hereby authorized to designate in the Certificate of Award a bank or trust

company authorized to do business in the State to act as the initial Bond Registrar. The County Auditor shall sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the County, the Registrar Agreement between the County and the Bond Registrar, in substantially the form as is now on file with the Clerk. The Registrar Agreement is approved, together with any changes or amendments that are not inconsistent with this Resolution and not substantially adverse to the County and that are approved by the County Auditor on behalf of the County, all of which shall be conclusively evidenced by the signing of the Registrar Agreement or amendments thereto. The County Auditor shall provide for the payment of the services rendered and for reimbursement of expenses incurred pursuant to the Registrar Agreement, except to the extent paid or reimbursed by the Original Purchaser in accordance with the Purchase Agreement, from the proceeds of the Bonds to the extent available and then from other money lawfully available and appropriated or to be appropriated for that purpose.

No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or shall be entitled to any security or benefit under the Bond proceedings unless and until the certificate of authentication printed on the Bond is signed by the Bond Registrar as authenticating agent. Authentication by the Bond Registrar shall be conclusive evidence that the Bond so authenticated has been duly issued, signed and delivered under, and is entitled to the security and benefit of, the Bond proceedings. The certificate of authentication may be signed by any authorized officer or employee of the Bond Registrar or by any other person acting as an agent of the Bond Registrar and approved by the County Auditor on behalf of the County. The same person need not sign the certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds.

Section 5. Registration; Transfer and Exchange; Book Entry System.

(a) <u>Bond Register</u>. So long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding, the County will cause the Bond Registrar to maintain and keep the Bond Register at its designated corporate trust office. Subject to the provisions of Sections 3(d) and 9(c), the person in whose name a Bond is registered on the Bond Register shall be regarded as the absolute owner of that Bond for all purposes of the Bond proceedings. Payment of or on account of the debt charges on any Bond shall be made only to or upon the order of that person; neither the County nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary, but the registration may be changed as provided in this Section. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the County's liability upon the Bond, including interest, to the extent of the amount or amounts so paid.

(b) <u>Transfer and Exchange</u>. Any Bond may be exchanged for Bonds of any Authorized Denomination upon presentation and surrender at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar, together with a request for exchange signed by the registered owner or by a person legally empowered to do so in a form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar. A Bond may be transferred only on the Bond Register upon presentation and surrender of the Bond at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar. Upon exchange or transfer the Bond Registrar shall complete, authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds of any Authorized Denomination or Denominations requested by the owner equal in the aggregate to the unmatured principal amount of the Bond surrendered and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date.

If manual signatures on behalf of the County are required, the Bond Registrar shall undertake the exchange or transfer of Bonds only after the new Bonds are signed by the authorized officers of the County. In all cases of Bonds exchanged or transferred, the County shall sign and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of the Bond proceedings. The exchange or transfer shall be without charge to the owner, except that the County and Bond Registrar may make a charge sufficient to reimburse them for any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to the exchange or transfer. The County or the Bond Registrar may require that those charges, if any, be paid before the procedure is begun for the exchange or transfer. All Bonds issued and authenticated upon any exchange or transfer shall be valid obligations of the County, evidencing the same debt, and entitled to the same security and benefit under the Bond proceedings as the Bonds surrendered upon that exchange or transfer. Neither the County nor the Bond Registrar shall be required to make any exchange or transfer of (i) Bonds then subject to call for redemption between the 15th day preceding the mailing of notice of Bonds to be redeemed and the date of that mailing, or (ii) any Bond selected for redemption, in whole or in part.

(c) <u>Book Entry System</u>. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Resolution, if the County Administrator determines in the Certificate of Award that it is in the best interest of and financially advantageous to the County, the Bonds may be issued in book entry form in accordance with the following provisions of this Section.

The Bonds may be issued to a Depository for use in a book entry system and, if and so long as a book entry system is utilized, (i) the Bonds may be issued in the form of a single, fully registered Bond representing each maturity and registered in the name of the Depository or its nominee, as registered owner, and immobilized in the custody of the Depository or its designated agent; (ii) the book entry interest owners of Bonds in book entry form shall not have any right to receive Bonds in the form of physical securities or certificates; (iii) ownership of book entry interests in Bonds in book entry form shall be shown by book entry on the system maintained and operated by the Depository and its Participants, and transfers of the ownership of book entry interests shall be made only by book entry by the Depository and its Participants; and (iv) the Bonds as such shall not be transferable or exchangeable, except for transfer to another Depository or to another nominee of a Depository, without further action by the County.

If any Depository determines not to continue to act as a Depository for the Bonds for use in a book entry system, the County Administrator may attempt to establish a securities depository/book entry relationship with another qualified Depository. If the County Administrator does not or is unable to do so, the County Administrator, after

making provision for notification of the book entry interest owners by the then Depository and any other arrangements deemed necessary, shall permit withdrawal of the Bonds from the Depository, and shall cause Bond certificates in registered form and Authorized Denominations to be authenticated by the Bond Registrar and delivered to the assigns of the Depository or its nominee, all at the cost and expense (including any costs of printing), if the event is not the result of County action or inaction, of those persons requesting such issuance.

The County Administrator is hereby authorized and directed, to the extent necessary or required, to enter into any agreements, in the name and on behalf of the County, that the County Administrator determines to be necessary in connection with a book entry system for the Bonds.

Section 6. Sale of the Bonds to the Original Purchaser. The Bonds shall be sold at private sale to the Original Purchaser at a purchase price, not less than 97% of the aggregate principal amount thereof, as shall be determined by the County Administrator in the Certificate of Award, plus accrued interest on the Bonds from their date to the Closing Date, and shall be awarded by the County Administrator with and upon such other terms as are required or authorized by this Resolution to be specified in the Certificate of Award, in accordance with law, the provisions of this Resolution and the Purchase Agreement. The County Administrator is authorized, if it is determined to be in the best interest of the County, to combine the issue of Bonds with one or more other bond issues of the County into a consolidated bond issue pursuant to Section 133.30(B) of the Ohio Revised Code in which case a single Certificate of Award may be utilized for the consolidated bond issue if appropriate and consistent with the terms of this Resolution.

The County Administrator shall sign and deliver the Certificate of Award and shall cause the Bonds to be prepared and signed and delivered, together with a true transcript of proceedings with reference to the issuance of the Bonds, to the Original Purchaser upon payment of the purchase price. The County Commissioners, or any of them, the County Auditor, the County Prosecutor, the County Treasurer, the County Administrator, the Clerk and other County officials, as appropriate, each are authorized and directed to sign any transcript certificates, financial statements and other documents and instruments and to take such actions as are necessary or appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Resolution.

The County Administrator shall sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the County, the Purchase Agreement between the County and the Original Purchaser, in substantially the form as is now on file with the Clerk, providing for the sale to, and the purchase by, the Original Purchaser of the Bonds. The Purchase Agreement is approved, together with any changes or amendments that are not inconsistent with this Resolution and not substantially adverse to the County and that are approved by the County Administrator on behalf of the County, all of which shall be conclusively evidenced by the signing of the Purchase Agreement or amendments thereto.

Section 7. Provisions for Tax Levy. There shall be levied on all the taxable property in the County, in addition to all other taxes, a direct tax annually during the period the Bonds are outstanding in an amount sufficient to pay the debt charges on the Bonds when due, which tax shall not be less than the interest and sinking fund tax required by Section 11 of Article XII of the Ohio Constitution. The tax shall be within the ten-mill limitation imposed by law, shall be and is ordered computed, certified, levied and extended upon the tax duplicate and collected by the same officers, in the same manner and at the same time that taxes for general purposes for each of those years are certified, levied, extended and collected, and shall be placed before and in preference to all other items and for the full amount thereof. The proceeds of the tax levy shall be placed in the Bond Retirement Fund, which is irrevocably pledged for the payment of the debt charges on the Bonds when and as the same fall due.

In each year to the extent money from the County's sales and use tax is available for the payment of the debt charges on the Bonds and is appropriated for that purpose, the amount of the tax shall be reduced by the amount of such money so available and appropriated with the covenant hereinafter set forth. To the extent this Board determines it is legally permissible and necessary to exempt the Bonds from certain debt limitations, the debt charges on the Bonds shall be paid from the County's sales and use taxes lawfully available therefor under the laws of the State; and the County hereby covenants, subject and pursuant to such authority, to appropriate annually from such County's sales and use taxes such amount as is necessary to meet such annual debt charges.

Nothing in the preceding paragraph in any way diminishes the irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit and general property taxing power of the County to the prompt payment of the debt charges on the Bonds.

Section 8. Federal Tax Considerations. The County covenants that it will use, and will restrict the use and investment of, the proceeds of the Bonds in such manner and to such extent as may be necessary so that (a) the Bonds will not (i) constitute private activity bonds, arbitrage bonds or hedge bonds under Sections 141, 148 or 149 of the Code or (ii) be treated other than as bonds to which Section 103 of the Code applies, and (b) the interest thereon will not be an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Code.

The County further covenants that (a) it will take or cause to be taken such actions that may be required of it for the interest on the Bonds to be and remain excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, (b) it will not take or authorize to be taken any actions that would adversely affect that exclusion, and (c) it, or persons acting for it, will, among other acts of compliance, (i) apply the proceeds of the Bonds to the governmental purpose of the borrowing, (ii) restrict the yield on investment property, (iii) make timely and adequate payments to the federal government, (iv) maintain books and records and make calculations and reports and (v) refrain from certain uses of those proceeds, and, as applicable, of property financed with such proceeds, all in such manner and to the extent necessary to assure such exclusion of that interest under the Code.

The County Auditor, as the fiscal officer of this County, or any other officer of the County having responsibility for issuance of the Bonds, is hereby authorized (a) to make or effect any election, selection, designation, choice, consent, approval, or waiver on behalf of the County with respect to the Bonds as the County is permitted or required to make or give under the federal income tax laws, including, without limitation thereto, any of the elections provided for in Section 148(f)(4)(C) of the Code or available under Section 148 of the Code, for the purpose of assuring, enhancing or protecting favorable tax treatment or status of the Bonds or interest thereon or assisting compliance with requirements for that purpose, reducing the burden or expense of such compliance, reducing the rebate amount or payments or penalties, or making payments of special amounts in lieu of making computations to determine, or paying, excess earnings as rebate, or obviating those amounts or payments, as determined by that officer, which action shall be in writing and signed by the officer, (b) to take any and all other actions, make or obtain calculations, make payments, and make or give reports, covenants and certifications of and on behalf of the County, as may be appropriate to assure the exclusion of interest from gross income and the intended tax status of the Bonds, and (c) to give one or more appropriate certificates of the County, for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings for the Bonds, setting forth the reasonable expectations of the County regarding the amount and use of all the proceeds of the Bonds, the facts, circumstances and estimates on which they are based, and other facts and circumstances relevant to the tax treatment of the interest on and the tax status of the Bonds.

Section 9. Official Statement, Rating, Bond Insurance and Continuing Disclosure.

(a) <u>Primary Offering Disclosure -- Official Statement</u>. The President of the Board of County Commissioners, the County Auditor and the County Administrator are each authorized and directed, on behalf of the County and in their official capacities, to (i) prepare or cause to be prepared, and make or authorize modifications, completions or changes of or supplements to, a disclosure document in the form of an official statement relating to the original issuance of the Bonds, (ii) determine, and to certify or otherwise represent, when the official statement is to be "deemed final" (except for permitted omissions) by the County as of its date or is a final official statement for purposes of paragraph (b) of the Rule, (iii) use and distribute, or authorize the use and distribution of those official statements and any supplements thereto in connection with the original issuance of the Bonds, and (iv) complete and sign those official statements and any supplements thereto as so approved, together with such certificates, statements or other documents in connection with the finality, accuracy and completeness of those official statements and any supplements, as they may deem necessary or appropriate.

(b) <u>Application for Rating or Bond Insurance</u>. If, in the judgment of the County Administrator, the filing of an application for (i) a rating on the Bonds by one or more nationally-recognized rating agencies, or (ii) a policy of insurance from a company or companies to better assure the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, is in the best interest of and financially advantageous to this County, the County Administrator is authorized to prepare and submit those applications, to provide to each such agency or company such information as may be required for the purpose, and to provide further for the payment of the cost of obtaining each such rating or policy, except to the extent otherwise paid in accordance with the Purchase Agreement, from the proceeds of the Bonds to the extent available and otherwise from any other funds lawfully available and that are appropriated or shall be appropriated for that purpose.

(c) <u>Agreement to Provide Continuing Disclosure</u>. For the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners from time to time of the Bonds, the County agrees, as the only obligated person with respect to the Bonds under the Rule, to provide or cause to be provided such financial information and operating data, audited financial statements and notices, in such manner, as may be required for purposes of paragraph (b)(5)(i) of the Rule. The County further agrees, in particular, to provide or cause to be provided:

(i) to each NRMSIR and to the SID, (A) Annual Information for each County fiscal year ending hereafter, not later than the 270^{th} day following the end of the fiscal year, and (B) when and if available, audited County financial statements for each such fiscal year; and

(ii) to each NRMSIR or to the MSRB, and to the SID, in a timely manner, notice of (A) any Specified Event if that Event is material, (B) the County's failure to provide the Annual Information within the time specified above, and (C) any change in the accounting principles applied in the preparation of its annual financial statements, any change in its fiscal year, its failure to appropriate funds to meet costs to be incurred to perform the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and of the termination of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

In order to further describe and specify certain terms of the County's Continuing Disclosure Agreement made for purposes of the Rule in and pursuant to this Resolution and to be formed, collectively, by this subsection (c) and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the County Administrator is authorized and directed to complete, sign and deliver the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, in the name and on behalf of the County, to specify in reasonable detail the Annual Information to be provided (which may be provided by specific reference to other documents previously filed and available in accordance with the Rule), whether the County has obtained any credit enhancement or provider for the Bonds and the County's expectations as to whether audited financial statements will be prepared, the accounting principles to be applied in their preparation, and whether they will be available together with, or separately from, Annual Information.

The County Administrator is further authorized and directed to establish procedures in order to ensure

compliance by the County with its Continuing Disclosure Agreement, including timely provision of information and notices as described above. Prior to making any filing in accordance with clause (ii) above or providing notice of the occurrence of any other events, the County Administrator shall consult with and obtain legal advice from, as appropriate, the County Prosecutor and bond or other qualified independent special counsel selected by the County. The County Administrator, acting in the name and on behalf of the County, shall be entitled to rely upon any such legal advice in determining whether a filing should be made.

The County reserves the right to amend its Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and to obtain the waiver of noncompliance with any provision of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, as may be necessary or appropriate to achieve its compliance with any applicable federal securities law or rule, to cure any ambiguity, inconsistency or formal defect or omission, and to address any change in circumstances arising from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status of the County, or type of business conducted by the County. Any such amendment or waiver will not be effective unless the Continuing Disclosure Agreement (as amended or taking into account such waiver) would have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary offering of the Bonds, after taking into account any applicable amendments to or official interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances, and until the County shall have received: either (i) a written opinion of bond or other qualified independent special counsel selected by the County that the amendment or waiver would not materially impair the interests of holders or beneficial owners of the Bonds or (ii) the written consent to the amendment or waiver of the holders of at least a majority of the principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding. Annual Information containing any revised operating data or financial information shall explain, in narrative form, the reasons for any such amendment or waiver and the impact of the change on the type of operating data or financial information being provided.

The County's Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall be solely for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners from time to time of the Bonds. The exclusive remedy for any breach of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement by the County shall be limited, to the extent permitted by law, to a right of holders and beneficial owners to institute and maintain, or to cause to be instituted and maintained, such proceedings as may be authorized at law or in equity to obtain the specific performance by the County of its obligations under the Continuing Disclosure Agreement. Any individual holder or beneficial owner may institute and maintain, or cause to be instituted and maintained, such proceedings to require the County to provide or cause to be provided a pertinent filing if such a filing is due and has not been made. Any such proceedings to require the County to perform any other obligation under the Continuing Disclosure Agreement (including any proceedings that contest the sufficiency of any pertinent filing) shall be instituted and maintained only by a trustee appointed by the holders and beneficial owners of not less than 25% in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding or by holders and beneficial owners of not less than 10% in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding in accordance with Section 133.25(B)(4)(b) or (C)(1), Ohio Revised Code, as applicable (or any like or comparable successor provisions).

The performance by the County of its Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall be subject to the annual appropriation of any funds that may be necessary to perform it.

The County's Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall remain in effect only for such period that the Bonds are outstanding in accordance with their terms and the County remains an obligated person with respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule. The obligation of the County to provide the Annual Information and notices of the events described above shall terminate, if and when the County no longer remains such an obligated person.

Section 10. <u>Certification and Delivery of Resolution and Certificate of Award</u>. The Clerk is directed to promptly deliver a certified copy of this Resolution and a copy of the Certificate of Award to the County Auditor.

Section 11. <u>Bond Counsel</u>. In connection with the issuance of the Bonds herein authorized, the law firm of Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P. is hereby retained to act as bond counsel to the County.

Section 12. Other Determinations. This Board determines that all acts and conditions necessary to be performed by the County or to have been met precedent to and in the issuing of the Bonds in order to make them legal, valid and binding general obligations of the County have been performed and have been met, or will at the time of delivery of the Bonds have been performed and have been met, in regular and due form as required by law; that the full faith and credit and general property taxing power (as described in Section 7) of the County are pledged for the timely payment of the debt charges on the Bonds; and that no statutory or constitutional limitation of indebtedness or taxation will have been exceeded in the issuance of the Bonds.

Section 13. Compliance with Open Meeting Requirements. This Board finds and determines that all formal actions of this Board and any of its committees concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Board or its committees and that all deliberations of this Board and any of its committees that resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the public in compliance with the law.

Section 14. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption.

Upon roll call on the adoption of the Resolution, the vote was as follows:

Vote on Motion Mr. J	lordan Nay	Mr. Evans	Aye	Mr. Ward	Aye
----------------------	------------	-----------	-----	----------	-----

RESOLUTION NO. 08-932

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF BONDS IN THE MAXIMUM PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF \$20,700,000 FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE COSTS OF CONSTRUCTING, EQUIPPING AND FURNISHING A NEW COUNTY JUSTICE FACILITY TO PROVIDE COURTROOMS, OFFICE SPACE, MEETING ROOMS, EQUIPMENT AND STORAGE SPACE, AND RELATED PARKING FACILITIES, ACQUIRING ANY NECESSARY INTERESTS IN REAL PROPERTY, AND IMPROVING THE SITE THEREOF, TOGETHER WITH ALL NECESSARY AND RELATED APPURTENANCES THERETO.

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Evans to approve the following:

WHEREAS, this Board adopted Resolution No. 07-541 on May 7, 2007 and authorized the continuing levy and collection of a sales and use tax at the rate of three-quarters of one percent (0.75%), one-half of one percent (0.50%) authorized under Sections 5739.021 and 5741.021 of the Ohio Revised Code and one-quarter of one percent (0.25%) authorized under Sections 5739.026 and 5741.023 of the Ohio Revised Code, for the purpose of providing additional general revenues for the County (collectively, the "*County Sales Tax*"); and

WHEREAS, this Board has determined to issue bonds supported by the County Sales Tax for the Improvement described in Section 2; and

WHEREAS, the County Auditor, as fiscal officer of this County, has certified to this Board that the estimated annual debt charges on the Bonds in any calendar year will not exceed the receipts from the County Sales Tax averaged for the two preceding calendar years and annualized for the passage of the County Sales Tax; and

WHEREAS, the County Auditor, as fiscal officer of this County, has certified to this Board that the estimated life or period of usefulness of the Improvement described in Section 2 is at least five (5) years and the estimated maximum maturity of the Bonds described in Section 2 is at least twenty-five (25) years;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Delaware, State of Ohio, that:

Section 1. Definitions and Interpretation. In addition to the words and terms elsewhere defined in this Resolution, unless the context or use clearly indicates another or different meaning or intent:

"Act" means Chapter 133 of the Ohio Revised Code.

"Additional Bonds" means any additional bonds of the County which may be subsequently issued and payable solely from the Pledged Revenues and the Pledged Funds on a parity with the Bonds.

"Annual Information" means annual financial information and operating data of the type to be specified in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate in accordance with the Rule.

"Authorized Denominations" means the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple in excess thereof.

"Bond proceedings" means, collectively, this Resolution, the Certificate of Award, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and such other proceedings of the County, including the Bonds, that provide collectively for, among other things, the rights of holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds.

"Bond Register" means all books and records necessary for the registration, exchange and transfer of Bonds as provided in Section 5.

"Bond Registrar" means a bank or trust company authorized to do business in the State and designated by the County Administrator in the Certificate of Award pursuant to Section 4 as the initial authenticating agent, bond registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the Bonds under the Registrar Agreement and until a successor Bond Registrar shall have become such pursuant to the provisions of the Registrar Agreement and, thereafter, *"Bond Registrar"* shall mean the successor Bond Registrar.

"Bonds" means, collectively, the Serial Bonds and the Term Bonds, each as is designated as such in the Certificate of Award.

"Book entry form" or *"book entry system"* means a form or system under which (a) the ownership of book entry interests in Bonds and the principal of and interest on the Bonds may be transferred only through a book entry, and (b) physical Bond certificates in fully registered form are issued by the County only to a Depository or its nominee as registered owner, with the Bonds "immobilized" in the custody of the Depository or its designated agent. The book entry maintained by others than the County is the record that identifies the owners of book entry interests in those Bonds and that principal and interest.

"Certificate of Award" means the certificate authorized by Section 6, to be executed by the County Administrator, setting forth and determining those terms or other matters pertaining to the Bonds and their issuance,

sale and delivery as this Resolution requires or authorizes to be set forth or determined therein.

"Clerk" means the Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners.

"Closing Date" means the date of physical delivery of, and payment of the purchase price for, the Bonds.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, the Regulations (whether temporary or final) under that Code or the statutory predecessor of that Code, and any amendments of, or successor provisions to, the foregoing and any official rulings, announcements, notices, procedures and judicial determinations regarding any of the foregoing, all as and to the extent applicable. Unless otherwise indicated, reference to a Section of the Code includes any applicable successor section or provision and such applicable Regulations, rulings, announcements, notices, procedures and determinations pertinent to that Section.

"Continuing Disclosure Certificate" means the certificate authorized by Section 11(c), to be substantially in the form on file with the Clerk, and which, together with the agreements of the County set forth in that subsection, shall constitute the continuing disclosure agreement (the "Continuing Disclosure Agreement") made by the County for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds in accordance with the Rule.

"County" means Delaware County, Ohio.

"County Administrator" means the County Administrator of the County.

"County Auditor" means the County Auditor of the County.

"County Sales Tax" means, collectively, the sales and use tax approved by the County pursuant to the County Sales Tax Resolution at the rate of three-quarters of one percent (0.75%), one-half of one percent (0.50%) being authorized under Sections 5739.021 and 5741.021 of the Ohio Revised Code and one-quarter of one percent (0.25%) being authorized under Sections 5739.026 and 5741.023 of the Ohio Revised Code, for the purpose of providing additional general revenues for the County.

"County Sales Tax Bond Fund" means the County Sales Tax Bond Fund created by Section 8 of this Resolution.

"County Sales Tax Receipts" means the monies received by the County from the County Sales Tax.

"County Sales Tax Resolution" means Resolution No. 07-541 adopted by the Board of County Commissioners on May 7, 2007.

"Depository" means any securities depository that is a clearing agency under federal law operating and maintaining, with its Participants or otherwise, a book entry system to record ownership of book entry interests in Bonds or the principal of and interest on Bonds, and to effect transfers of Bonds, in book entry form, and includes and means initially The Depository Trust Company (a limited purpose trust company), New York.

"Interest Payment Dates" means June 1 and December 1 of each year that the Bonds are outstanding, commencing on the date specified in the Certificate of Award.

"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board established by the SEC.

"NRMSIR" means each nationally recognized municipal securities information repository designated from time to time by the SEC in accordance with the Rule.

"Original Purchaser" means the purchaser of the Bonds specified in the Certificate of Award.

"Participant" means any participant contracting with a Depository under a book entry system and includes securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies, and clearing corporations.

"Pledged Funds" means the County Sales Tax Bond Fund and any other funds established and pledged as security for the Bonds.

"Pledged Revenues" means, collectively, (a) the County Sales Tax Receipts and (b) all monies in the Pledged Funds and all income and profit from the investment of those monies.

"Principal Payment Dates" means December 1 in each of the years from and including 2009 to and including 2033, provided that the first Principal Payment Date may be deferred up to one year and the last Principal Payment Date may be advanced up to five years, which determination shall be made by the County Administrator in the Certificate of Award in such manner as to be in the best interest of and financially advantageous to the County and further provided that in no case shall the final Principal Payment Date exceed the maximum maturity of the Bonds referred to in the preambles hereto.

"Purchase Agreement" means the Bond Purchase Agreement between the County and the Original

Purchaser, as it may be modified from the form on file with the Clerk and executed by the County Administrator, all in accordance with Section 6.

"Registrar Agreement" means the Bond Registrar Agreement between the County and the Bond Registrar, as it may be modified from the form on file with the Clerk and executed by the County Auditor, all in accordance with Section 4.

"Regulations" means Treasury Regulations issued pursuant to the Code or to the statutory predecessor of the Code.

"Rule" means Rule 15c2-12 prescribed by the SEC pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

"SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

"Serial Bonds" means those Bonds designated as such and maturing on the dates set forth in the Certificate of Award, bearing interest payable on each Interest Payment Date and not subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption.

"SID" means the state information depository, if any, with which filings are required to be made by the County in accordance with the Rule.

"Specified Events" means the occurrence of any of the following events, within the meaning of the Rule, with respect to the Bonds, as applicable: principal and interest payment delinquencies; non-payment related defaults; unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the Bonds; modifications to rights of holders or beneficial owners of the Bonds; Bond calls; defeasances; release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds; and rating changes. The repayment of the Bonds is not secured by a lien on any property capable of release or sale or for which other property may be substituted.

"State" means the State of Ohio.

"Term Bonds" means those Bonds designated as such and maturing on the date or dates set forth in the Certificate of Award, bearing interest payable on each Interest Payment Date and subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption.

The captions and headings in this Resolution are solely for convenience of reference and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any Sections, subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs or clauses hereof. Reference to a Section means a section of this Resolution unless otherwise indicated.

<u>Section 2</u>. <u>Authorized Principal Amount and Purpose; Application of Proceeds</u>. It is necessary and determined to be in the County's best interest to issue bonds of this County in the maximum principal amount of \$20,700,000 (the "*Bonds*") for the purpose of paying the costs of constructing, equipping and furnishing a new County justice facility to provide courtrooms, office space, meeting rooms, equipment and storage space, and related parking facilities, acquiring any necessary interests in real property, and improving the site thereof, together with all necessary and related appurtenances thereto (the "*Improvement*"). The Bonds shall be issued pursuant to the Act, this Resolution and the Certificate of Award.

The aggregate principal amount of Bonds to be issued shall not exceed the maximum principal amount specified in this Section 2 and shall be an amount determined by the County Administrator in the Certificate of Award to be the aggregate principal amount of Bonds that is required to be issued at this time for the purpose stated in this Section 2, taking into account the costs of the Improvement, the estimated financing costs and the interest rates on the Bonds.

The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds received by the County (or withheld by the Original Purchaser on behalf of the County) shall be paid into the proper fund or funds, and those proceeds are appropriated and shall be used for the purpose for which the Bonds are being issued. The Purchase Agreement may authorize the Original Purchaser to withhold certain proceeds from the sale of the Bonds to provide for the payment of certain financing costs on behalf of the County. Any portion of those proceeds received by the County (after payment of those financing costs) representing premium and accrued interest shall be paid into the County Sales Tax Bond Fund.

Section 3. Denominations; Dating; Principal and Interest Payment and Redemption Provisions. The Bonds shall be issued in one lot and only as fully registered bonds, in the Authorized Denominations, but in no case as to a particular maturity date exceeding the principal amount maturing on that date. The Bonds shall be dated as provided in the Certificate of Award, provided that their dated date shall not be more than sixty (60) days prior to the Closing Date.

(a) <u>Interest Rates and Payment Dates</u>. The Bonds shall bear the rate or rates of interest per year (computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months), as shall be determined by the County Administrator, subject to subsection (c) of this Section, in the Certificate of Award; provided, that the Bonds of any one stated maturity all shall bear the same rate of interest. Interest on the Bonds shall be payable at such rate or rates

on the Interest Payment Dates until the principal amount has been paid or provided for. The Bonds shall bear interest from the most recent date to which interest has been paid or provided for or, if no interest has been paid or provided for, from their date.

(b) <u>Principal Payment Schedule</u>. The Bonds shall mature or be payable pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements (as hereinafter defined and described) on the Principal Payment Dates in principal amounts as shall be determined, subject to subsection (c) of this Section, in the Certificate of Award, which determination shall be consistent with the best interest of and financial advantages to the County.

Consistent with the foregoing and in accordance with the determination of the best interest of and financial advantages to the County, the County Administrator shall specify in the Certificate of Award (i) the aggregate principal amount of Bonds to be issued as Serial Bonds, the Principal Payment Date or Dates on which those Bonds shall be stated to mature and the principal amount thereof that shall be stated to mature on each such Principal Payment Date, and (ii) the aggregate principal amount of Bonds to be issued as Serial Bonds, the Principal Payment Date, and (ii) the aggregate principal amount of Bonds to be issued as Term Bonds, the Principal Payment Date or Dates on which those Bonds shall be stated to mature, the principal amount thereof that shall be stated to mature on each such Principal Payment Date, the Principal Payment Date or Dates on which Term Bonds shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption (each a "*Mandatory Redemption Date*") and the principal amount thereof that shall be payable pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements (as defined below) on each Mandatory Redemption Date.

(c) <u>Conditions for Establishment of Interest Rates and Principal Payment Dates and Amounts</u>. The net interest rate per year for the Bonds determined by taking into account the respective principal amounts of the Bonds and terms to maturity or mandatory sinking fund redemption of those principal amounts of Bonds shall not exceed 6.00% per year.

(d) <u>Payment of Debt Charges</u>. The debt charges on the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America without deduction for the services of the Bond Registrar as paying agent. Principal of and any premium on the Bonds shall be payable when due upon presentation and surrender of the Bonds at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar. Interest on a Bond shall be paid on each Interest Payment Date by check or draft mailed to the person in whose name the Bond was registered, and to that person's address appearing, on the Bond Register at the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding that Interest Payment Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if and so long as the Bonds are issued in a book entry system, principal of and interest and any premium on the Bonds shall be payable in the manner provided in any agreement entered into by the County Auditor, in the name and on behalf of the County, in connection with the book entry system.

(e) <u>Redemption Provisions</u>. The Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to stated maturity as follows:

(i) <u>Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption of Term Bonds</u>. If any of the Bonds are issued as Term Bonds, the Term Bonds shall be subject to mandatory redemption in part by lot and be redeemed pursuant to mandatory sinking fund redemption requirements, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount redeemed, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, on the applicable Mandatory Redemption Dates and in the principal amounts payable on those Dates, for which provision is made in the Certificate of Award (such Dates and amounts being referred to as the "Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements").

The aggregate of the moneys to be deposited with the Bond Registrar for payment of principal of and interest on any Term Bonds on each Mandatory Redemption Date shall include an amount sufficient to redeem on that Date the principal amount of Term Bonds payable on that Date pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements (less the amount of any credit as hereinafter provided).

The County shall have the option to deliver to the Bond Registrar for cancellation Term Bonds in any aggregate principal amount and to receive a credit against the then current or any subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligation) of the County, as specified by the County Auditor, for Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date as the Term Bonds so delivered. That option shall be exercised by the County on or before the 15th day preceding any Mandatory Redemption Date with respect to which the County wishes to obtain a credit, by furnishing the Bond Registrar a certificate, signed by the County Auditor, setting forth the extent of the credit to be applied with respect to the then current or any subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement for Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date. If the certificate is not timely furnished to the Bond Registrar, the current Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligation) shall not be reduced. A credit against the then current or any subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligation), as specified by the County Auditor, also shall be received by the County for any Term Bonds which prior thereto have been redeemed (other than through the operation of the applicable Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements) or purchased for cancellation and canceled by the Bond Registrar, to the extent not applied theretofore as a credit against any Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement, for Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date as the Term Bonds so redeemed or purchased and canceled.

Each Term Bond so delivered, or previously redeemed, or purchased and canceled, shall be credited by the Bond Registrar at 100% of the principal amount thereof against the then current or subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligations), as specified by the County Auditor, for Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date as the Term Bonds so delivered, redeemed or purchased and canceled.

(ii) <u>Optional Redemption</u>. The Bonds of the maturities specified in the Certificate of Award shall be subject to optional redemption by and at the sole option of the County, in whole or in part in integral multiples of \$5,000, on the dates and at the redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount to be redeemed), plus accrued interest to the redemption date, to be determined by the County Administrator in the Certificate of Award; provided that the earliest optional redemption date shall not be later than December 1, 2019, and the redemption price for the earliest optional redemption date shall not be greater than 103%.

If optional redemption of Term Bonds at a redemption price exceeding 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed is to take place as of any Mandatory Redemption Date applicable to those Term Bonds, the Term Bonds, or portions thereof, to be redeemed optionally shall be selected by lot prior to the selection by lot of the Term Bonds of the same maturity to be redeemed on the same date by operation of the Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements. Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to this paragraph shall be redeemed only upon written notice from the County Auditor to the Bond Registrar, given upon the direction of this Board by adoption of a resolution. That notice shall specify the redemption date and the principal amount of each maturity of Bonds to be redeemed, and shall be given at least 45 days prior to the redemption date or such shorter period as shall be acceptable to the Bond Registrar.

Partial Redemption. If fewer than all of the outstanding Bonds are called for optional (iii) redemption at one time and Bonds of more than one maturity are then outstanding, the Bonds that are called shall be Bonds of the maturity or maturities selected by the County. If fewer than all of the Bonds of a single maturity are to be redeemed, the selection of Bonds of that maturity to be redeemed, or portions thereof in amounts of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, shall be made by the Bond Registrar by lot in a manner determined by the Bond Registrar. In the case of a partial redemption of Bonds by lot when Bonds of denominations greater than \$5,000 are then outstanding, each \$5,000 unit of principal thereof shall be treated as if it were a separate Bond of the denomination of \$5,000. If it is determined that one or more, but not all, of the \$5,000 units of principal amount represented by a Bond are to be called for redemption, then, upon notice of redemption of a \$5,000 unit or units, the registered owner of that Bond shall surrender the Bond to the Bond Registrar (A) for payment of the redemption price of the \$5,000 unit or units of principal amount called for redemption (including, without limitation, the interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption and any premium), and (B) for issuance, without charge to the registered owner, of a new Bond or Bonds of any Authorized Denomination or Denominations in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unmatured and unredeemed portion of, and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date as, the Bond surrendered.

(iv) <u>Notice of Redemption</u>. The notice of the call for redemption of Bonds shall identify (A) by designation, letters, numbers or other distinguishing marks, the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, (B) the redemption price to be paid, (C) the date fixed for redemption, and (D) the place or places where the amounts due upon redemption are payable. The notice shall be given by the Bond Registrar on behalf of the County by mailing a copy of the redemption notice by first-class mail, postage prepaid, at least 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption, to the registered owner of each Bond subject to redemption in whole or in part at the registered owner's address shown on the Bond Register maintained by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the 15th day preceding that mailing. Failure to receive notice by mail or any defect in that notice regarding any Bond, however, shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any Bond.

Payment of Redeemed Bonds. In the event that notice of redemption shall have been (v) given by the Bond Registrar to the registered owners as provided above, there shall be deposited with the Bond Registrar on or prior to the redemption date, moneys that, in addition to any other moneys available therefor and held by the Bond Registrar, will be sufficient to redeem at the redemption price thereof, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, all of the redeemable Bonds for which notice of redemption has been given. Notice having been mailed in the manner provided in the preceding paragraph hereof, the Bonds and portions thereof called for redemption shall become due and payable on the redemption date, and, subject to the provisions of Sections 3(d) and 5, upon presentation and surrender thereof at the place or places specified in that notice, shall be paid at the redemption price, plus accrued interest to the redemption date. If moneys for the redemption of all of the Bonds and portions thereof to be redeemed, together with accrued interest thereon to the redemption date, are held by the Bond Registrar on the redemption date, so as to be available therefor on that date and, if notice of redemption has been deposited in the mail as aforesaid, then from and after the redemption date those Bonds and portions thereof called for redemption shall cease to bear interest and no longer shall be considered to be outstanding. If those moneys shall not be so available on the redemption date, or that notice shall not have been deposited in the mail as aforesaid, those Bonds and portions thereof shall continue to bear interest, until they are paid, at the same rate as they would have borne had they not been called for redemption. All moneys held by the Bond Registrar for the redemption of particular Bonds shall be held in trust for the account of the registered owners thereof and shall be paid to

them, respectively, upon presentation and surrender of those Bonds.

Section 4. Execution and Authentication of Bonds; Appointment of Bond Registrar. The Bonds shall be signed by at least two members of the Board of County Commissioners and the County Auditor, in the name of the County and in their official capacities, provided that any or all of those signatures may be a facsimile. The Bonds shall be issued in the Authorized Denominations and numbers as requested by the Original Purchaser and approved by the County Administrator, shall be numbered as determined by the County Administrator in order to distinguish each Bond from any other Bond and shall express upon their faces the purpose, in summary terms, for which they are issued and that they are issued pursuant to this Resolution.

The County Administrator is hereby authorized to designate in the Certificate of Award a bank or trust company authorized to do business in the State to act as the initial Bond Registrar. The County Auditor shall sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the County, the Registrar Agreement between the County and the Bond Registrar, in substantially the form as is now on file with the Clerk. The Registrar Agreement is approved, together with any changes or amendments that are not inconsistent with this Resolution and not substantially adverse to the County and that are approved by the County Auditor on behalf of the County, all of which shall be conclusively evidenced by the signing of the Registrar Agreement or amendments thereto. The County Auditor shall provide for the payment of the services rendered and for reimbursement of expenses incurred pursuant to the Registrar Agreement, except to the extent paid or reimbursed by the Original Purchaser in accordance with the Purchase Agreement, from the proceeds of the Bonds to the extent available and then from other money lawfully available and appropriated or to be appropriated for that purpose.

No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or shall be entitled to any security or benefit under the Bond proceedings unless and until the certificate of authentication printed on the Bond is signed by the Bond Registrar as authenticating agent. Authentication by the Bond Registrar shall be conclusive evidence that the Bond so authenticated has been duly issued, signed and delivered under, and is entitled to the security and benefit of, the Bond proceedings. The certificate of authentication may be signed by any authorized officer or employee of the Bond Registrar or by any other person acting as an agent of the Bond Registrar and approved by the County Auditor on behalf of the County. The same person need not sign the certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds.

Section 5. Registration; Transfer and Exchange; Book Entry System.

(a) <u>Bond Register</u>. So long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding, the County will cause the Bond Registrar to maintain and keep the Bond Register at its designated corporate trust office. Subject to the provisions of Sections 3(d) and 11(c), the person in whose name a Bond is registered on the Bond Register shall be regarded as the absolute owner of that Bond for all purposes of the Bond proceedings. Payment of or on account of the debt charges on any Bond shall be made only to or upon the order of that person; neither the County nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary, but the registration may be changed as provided in this Section. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the County's liability upon the Bond, including interest, to the extent of the amount or amounts so paid.

(b) <u>Transfer and Exchange</u>. Any Bond may be exchanged for Bonds of any Authorized Denomination upon presentation and surrender at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar, together with a request for exchange signed by the registered owner or by a person legally empowered to do so in a form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar. A Bond may be transferred only on the Bond Register upon presentation and surrender of the Bond at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar. Upon exchange or transfer the Bond Registrar shall complete, authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds of any Authorized Denomination or Denominations requested by the owner equal in the aggregate to the unmatured principal amount of the Bond surrendered and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date.

If manual signatures on behalf of the County are required, the Bond Registrar shall undertake the exchange or transfer of Bonds only after the new Bonds are signed by the authorized officers of the County. In all cases of Bonds exchanged or transferred, the County shall sign and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of the Bond proceedings. The exchange or transfer shall be without charge to the owner, except that the County and Bond Registrar may make a charge sufficient to reimburse them for any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to the exchange or transfer. The County or the Bond Registrar may require that those charges, if any, be paid before the procedure is begun for the exchange or transfer. All Bonds issued and authenticated upon any exchange or transfer shall be valid obligations of the County, evidencing the same debt, and entitled to the same security and benefit under the Bond proceedings as the Bonds surrendered upon that exchange or transfer. Neither the County nor the Bond Registrar shall be required to make any exchange or transfer of (i) Bonds then subject to call for redemption between the 15th day preceding the mailing of notice of Bonds to be redeemed and the date of that mailing, or (ii) any Bond selected for redemption, in whole or in part.

(c) <u>Book Entry System</u>. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Resolution, if the County Administrator determines in the Certificate of Award that it is in the best interest of and financially advantageous to the County, the Bonds may be issued in book entry form in accordance with the following provisions of this Section.

The Bonds may be issued to a Depository for use in a book entry system and, if and so long as a book entry system is utilized, (i) the Bonds may be issued in the form of a single, fully registered Bond representing each maturity

and registered in the name of the Depository or its nominee, as registered owner, and immobilized in the custody of the Depository or its designated agent; (ii) the book entry interest owners of Bonds in book entry form shall not have any right to receive Bonds in the form of physical securities or certificates; (iii) ownership of book entry interests in Bonds in book entry form shall be shown by book entry on the system maintained and operated by the Depository and its Participants, and transfers of the ownership of book entry interests shall be made only by book entry by the Depository and its Participants; and (iv) the Bonds as such shall not be transferable or exchangeable, except for transfer to another Depository or to another nominee of a Depository, without further action by the County.

If any Depository determines not to continue to act as a Depository for the Bonds for use in a book entry system, the County Administrator may attempt to establish a securities depository/book entry relationship with another qualified Depository. If the County Administrator does not or is unable to do so, the County Administrator, after making provision for notification of the book entry interest owners by the then Depository and any other arrangements deemed necessary, shall permit withdrawal of the Bonds from the Depository, and shall cause Bond certificates in registered form and Authorized Denominations to be authenticated by the Bond Registrar and delivered to the assigns of the Depository or its nominee, all at the cost and expense (including any costs of printing), if the event is not the result of County action or inaction, of those persons requesting such issuance.

The County Administrator is hereby authorized and directed, to the extent necessary or required, to enter into any agreements, in the name and on behalf of the County, that the County Administrator determines to be necessary in connection with a book entry system for the Bonds.

Section 6. Sale of the Bonds to the Original Purchaser. The Bonds shall be sold at private sale to the Original Purchaser at a purchase price, not less than 97% of the aggregate principal amount thereof, as shall be determined by the County Administrator in the Certificate of Award, plus accrued interest on the Bonds from their date to the Closing Date, and shall be awarded by the County Administrator with and upon such other terms as are required or authorized by this Resolution to be specified in the Certificate of Award, in accordance with law, the provisions of this Resolution and the Purchase Agreement.

The County Administrator shall sign and deliver the Certificate of Award and shall cause the Bonds to be prepared and signed and delivered, together with a true transcript of proceedings with reference to the issuance of the Bonds, to the Original Purchaser upon payment of the purchase price. The County Commissioners, or any of them, the County Auditor, the County Prosecutor, the County Treasurer, the County Administrator, the Clerk and other County officials, as appropriate, each are authorized and directed to sign any transcript certificates, financial statements and other documents and instruments and to take such actions as are necessary or appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Resolution.

The County Administrator shall sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the County, the Purchase Agreement between the County and the Original Purchaser, in substantially the form as is now on file with the Clerk, providing for the sale to, and the purchase by, the Original Purchaser of the Bonds. The Purchase Agreement is approved, together with any changes or amendments that are not inconsistent with this Resolution and not substantially adverse to the County and that are approved by the County Administrator on behalf of the County, all of which shall be conclusively evidenced by the signing of the Purchase Agreement or amendments thereto.

Section 7. Bonds are Special Obligations and Provisions for Levy and Collection of County Sales Tax. The Bonds are special obligations of the County, and the principal of and interest (and any premium) on the Bonds and any Additional Bonds are payable solely from the Pledged Revenues and the Pledged Funds, and such payment is secured by a pledge of and a lien on the Pledged Revenues and the Pledged Funds as provided by the Act and this Resolution.

The County has heretofore levied and covenants that it shall continue to collect the County Sales Taxes for so long as the Bonds and any Additional Bonds are outstanding. The County hereby covenants and agrees that, so long as the Bonds and any Additional Bonds are outstanding, it shall not suffer the repeal, amendment or any other change in this Resolution, or the County Sales Tax Resolution, that in any way materially and adversely affects or impairs (a) the sufficiency of the County Sales Tax Receipts levied and collected or otherwise available for the payment of the Bonds and any Additional Bonds or (b) the pledge or the application of the County Sales Tax Receipts to the payment of the Bonds and any Additional Bonds.

The Bonds do not constitute a general obligation debt, or a pledge of the full faith and credit, of the State, the County, or any other political subdivision of the State, and the holders or owners of the Bonds have no right to have taxes levied by the general assembly or property taxes levied by the taxing authority of any political subdivision of the State, including the taxing authority of the County, for the payment of principal of and interest (and any premium) on the Bonds. Nothing herein shall be construed as requiring the County to use or apply to the payment of principal of and interest (and any premium) on the Bonds any funds or revenues from any source other than County Sales Tax Receipts. Nothing herein, however, shall be deemed to prohibit the County, of its own volition, from using, to the extent that it is authorized by law to do so, any other resources for the fulfillment of any of the terms, conditions or obligations of this Resolution or of the Bonds.

Section 8. Creation of County Sales Tax Bond Fund and Application of County Sales Tax Receipts. The County Sales Tax Bond Fund is hereby created as of the date of initial delivery of the Bonds and shall be maintained by the County Auditor in the custody of the County. The County Auditor is hereby authorized to maintain, or permit the maintenance of, such separate accounts in that Fund, and such separate subaccounts in any

account, as is determined to be in the best interest of the County. Any monies on deposit in the County Sales Tax Bond Fund shall be invested to the extent permitted by law.

The County hereby covenants, subject and pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State, to appropriate and pay from the County Sales Tax Receipts into the County Sales Tax Bond Fund on the fifteenth (15th) day of each month an amount which, after giving effect to any amounts then on deposit in the County Sales Tax Bond Fund, including any interest earnings retained in that Fund, and assuming the same amount is deposited into the County Sales Tax Bond Fund in each of the remaining months preceding the next respective Interest Payment Date and Principal Payment Date, would result in an amount sufficient to pay the interest and principal due and payable on all outstanding Bonds and Additional Bonds on that next respective Interest Payment Date and Principal Payment Date. For that purpose, in each year while the Bonds and any Additional Bonds are outstanding, this Board will appropriate County Sales Tax Receipts required to pay the principal of and interest (and any premium) on the Bonds and any Additional Bonds in that year. Further, this Board will give effect to such appropriations in all resolutions it passes thereafter in that year appropriating money for expenditure and encumbrance and limit the other appropriations of County Sales Tax Receipts in that year to the amount available after deducting the amount required to pay the principal of and interest (and any premium) on the Bonds and any Additional Bonds in that year.

Any portion of the County Sales Tax Receipts not otherwise required to be deposited into the County Sales Tax Bond Fund in accordance with this Section shall be used to meet other obligations of the County to be discharged from the County Sales Tax.

Section 9. Additional Bonds. The County shall have the right from time to time to issue Additional Bonds on a parity with the Bonds, which Additional Bonds shall be shall be payable solely from the Pledged Revenues and the Pledged Funds, and such payment shall be secured by a pledge of and a lien on the Pledged Revenues and the Pledged Funds as provided by the Act and by a resolution adopted by this Board authorizing the issuance of those Additional Bonds; *provided, that,* when any such Additional Bonds are issued, the County shall have furnished a certificate of the County Auditor showing that the aggregate amount of County Sales Tax Receipts received during the fiscal year immediately preceding the issuance of those Additional Bonds is at least equal to one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the largest amount required to be paid in any succeeding calendar year to meet interest and principal maturities of the Bonds and any Additional Bonds to be outstanding immediately after the issuance of such Additional Bonds.

The monies in the County Sales Tax Bond Fund shall be applied to all Additional Bonds in the manner provided for in Section 8 hereof as if the Additional Bonds were the Bonds. The proceeds of any sale of Additional Bonds shall be allocated in the manner provided in the resolution authorizing their issuance. Junior lien or other subordinate bonds payable from the Pledged Revenues and Pledged Funds may be issued without limitation.

The Additional Bonds shall bear such designation as may be necessary to distinguish them from the Bonds or other Additional Bonds having different provisions and shall have maturities, interest rates, Interest Payment Dates, redemption provisions, denominations and other provisions as provided in the resolutions hereafter adopted providing for the issuance of the Additional Bonds; *provided*, *however*, that those terms and provisions shall not be inconsistent with this Resolution, or the then outstanding Bonds.

Section 10. Federal Tax Considerations. The County covenants that it will use, and will restrict the use and investment of, the proceeds of the Bonds in such manner and to such extent as may be necessary so that (a) the Bonds will not (i) constitute private activity bonds, arbitrage bonds or hedge bonds under Sections 141, 148 or 149 of the Code or (ii) be treated other than as bonds to which Section 103 of the Code applies, and (b) the interest thereon will not be an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Code.

The County further covenants that (a) it will take or cause to be taken such actions that may be required of it for the interest on the Bonds to be and remain excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, (b) it will not take or authorize to be taken any actions that would adversely affect that exclusion, and (c) it, or persons acting for it, will, among other acts of compliance, (i) apply the proceeds of the Bonds to the governmental purpose of the borrowing, (ii) restrict the yield on investment property, (iii) make timely and adequate payments to the federal government, (iv) maintain books and records and make calculations and reports and (v) refrain from certain uses of those proceeds, and, as applicable, of property financed with such proceeds, all in such manner and to the extent necessary to assure such exclusion of that interest under the Code.

The County Auditor, as the fiscal officer of this County, or any other officer of the County having responsibility for issuance of the Bonds, is hereby authorized (a) to make or effect any election, selection, designation, choice, consent, approval, or waiver on behalf of the County with respect to the Bonds as the County is permitted or required to make or give under the federal income tax laws, including, without limitation thereto, any of the elections provided for in Section 148(f)(4)(C) of the Code or available under Section 148 of the Code, for the purpose of assuring, enhancing or protecting favorable tax treatment or status of the Bonds or interest thereon or assisting compliance with requirements for that purpose, reducing the burden or expense of such compliance, reducing the rebate amount or payments or penalties, or making payments of special amounts in lieu of making computations to determine, or paying, excess earnings as rebate, or obviating those amounts or payments, as determined by that officer, which action shall be in writing and signed by the officer, (b) to take any and all other actions, make or obtain calculations, make payments, and make or give reports, covenants and certifications of and on behalf of the County, as

may be appropriate to assure the exclusion of interest from gross income and the intended tax status of the Bonds, and (c) to give one or more appropriate certificates of the County, for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings for the Bonds, setting forth the reasonable expectations of the County regarding the amount and use of all the proceeds of the Bonds, the facts, circumstances and estimates on which they are based, and other facts and circumstances relevant to the tax treatment of the interest on and the tax status of the Bonds.

Section 11. Official Statement, Rating, Bond Insurance and Continuing Disclosure.

(a) <u>Primary Offering Disclosure -- Official Statement</u>. The President of the Board of County Commissioners, the County Auditor and the County Administrator are each authorized and directed, on behalf of the County and in their official capacities, to (i) prepare or cause to be prepared, and make or authorize modifications, completions or changes of or supplements to, a disclosure document in the form of an official statement relating to the original issuance of the Bonds, (ii) determine, and to certify or otherwise represent, when the official statement is to be "deemed final" (except for permitted omissions) by the County as of its date or is a final official statement for purposes of paragraph (b) of the Rule, (iii) use and distribute, or authorize the use and distribution of those official statements and any supplements thereto in connection with the original issuance of the Bonds, and (iv) complete and sign those official statements and any supplements thereto as so approved, together with such certificates, statements or other documents in connection with the finality, accuracy and completeness of those official statements and any supplements, as they may deem necessary or appropriate.

(b) <u>Application for Rating or Bond Insurance</u>. If, in the judgment of the County Administrator, the filing of an application for (i) a rating on the Bonds by one or more nationally-recognized rating agencies, or (ii) a policy of insurance from a company or companies to better assure the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, is in the best interest of and financially advantageous to this County, the County Administrator is authorized to prepare and submit those applications, to provide to each such agency or company such information as may be required for the purpose, and to provide further for the payment of the cost of obtaining each such rating or policy, except to the extent otherwise paid in accordance with the Purchase Agreement, from the proceeds of the Bonds to the extent available and otherwise from any other funds lawfully available and that are appropriated or shall be appropriated for that purpose.

(c) <u>Agreement to Provide Continuing Disclosure</u>. For the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners from time to time of the Bonds, the County agrees, as the only obligated person with respect to the Bonds under the Rule, to provide or cause to be provided such financial information and operating data, audited financial statements and notices, in such manner, as may be required for purposes of paragraph (b)(5)(i) of the Rule. The County further agrees, in particular, to provide or cause to be provided:

(i) to each NRMSIR and to the SID, (A) Annual Information for each County fiscal year ending hereafter, not later than the 270^{th} day following the end of the fiscal year, and (B) when and if available, audited County financial statements for each such fiscal year; and

(ii) to each NRMSIR or to the MSRB, and to the SID, in a timely manner, notice of (A) any Specified Event if that Event is material, (B) the County's failure to provide the Annual Information within the time specified above, and (C) any change in the accounting principles applied in the preparation of its annual financial statements, any change in its fiscal year, its failure to appropriate funds to meet costs to be incurred to perform the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and of the termination of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

In order to further describe and specify certain terms of the County's Continuing Disclosure Agreement made for purposes of the Rule in and pursuant to this Resolution and to be formed, collectively, by this subsection (c) and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the County Administrator is authorized and directed to complete, sign and deliver the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, in the name and on behalf of the County, to specify in reasonable detail the Annual Information to be provided (which may be provided by specific reference to other documents previously filed and available in accordance with the Rule), whether the County has obtained any credit enhancement or provider for the Bonds and the County's expectations as to whether audited financial statements will be prepared, the accounting principles to be applied in their preparation, and whether they will be available together with, or separately from, Annual Information.

The County Administrator is further authorized and directed to establish procedures in order to ensure compliance by the County with its Continuing Disclosure Agreement, including timely provision of information and notices as described above. Prior to making any filing in accordance with clause (ii) above or providing notice of the occurrence of any other events, the County Administrator shall consult with and obtain legal advice from, as appropriate, the County Prosecutor and bond or other qualified independent special counsel selected by the County. The County Administrator, acting in the name and on behalf of the County, shall be entitled to rely upon any such legal advice in determining whether a filing should be made.

The County reserves the right to amend its Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and to obtain the waiver of noncompliance with any provision of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, as may be necessary or appropriate to achieve its compliance with any applicable federal securities law or rule, to cure any ambiguity, inconsistency or formal defect or omission, and to address any change in circumstances arising from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status of the County, or type of business conducted by the County.

Any such amendment or waiver will not be effective unless the Continuing Disclosure Agreement (as amended or taking into account such waiver) would have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary offering of the Bonds, after taking into account any applicable amendments to or official interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances, and until the County shall have received: either (i) a written opinion of bond or other qualified independent special counsel selected by the County that the amendment or waiver would not materially impair the interests of holders or beneficial owners of the Bonds or (ii) the written consent to the amendment or waiver of the holders of at least a majority of the principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding. Annual Information containing any revised operating data or financial information shall explain, in narrative form, the reasons for any such amendment or waiver and the impact of the change on the type of operating data or financial information being provided.

The County's Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall be solely for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners from time to time of the Bonds. The exclusive remedy for any breach of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement by the County shall be limited, to the extent permitted by law, to a right of holders and beneficial owners to institute and maintain, or to cause to be instituted and maintained, such proceedings as may be authorized at law or in equity to obtain the specific performance by the County of its obligations under the Continuing Disclosure Agreement. Any individual holder or beneficial owner may institute and maintain, or cause to be instituted and maintained, such proceedings to require the County to provide or cause to be provided a pertinent filing if such a filing is due and has not been made. Any such proceedings to require the County to perform any other obligation under the Continuing Disclosure Agreement (including any proceedings that contest the sufficiency of any pertinent filing) shall be instituted and maintained only by a trustee appointed by the holders and beneficial owners of not less than 25% in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding or by holders and beneficial owners of not less than 10% in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding in accordance with Section 133.25(B)(4)(b) or (C)(1), Ohio Revised Code, as applicable (or any like or comparable successor provisions).

The performance by the County of its Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall be subject to the annual appropriation of any funds that may be necessary to perform it.

The County's Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall remain in effect only for such period that the Bonds are outstanding in accordance with their terms and the County remains an obligated person with respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule. The obligation of the County to provide the Annual Information and notices of the events described above shall terminate, if and when the County no longer remains such an obligated person.

Section 12. Certification and Delivery of Resolution and Certificate of Award. The Clerk is directed to promptly deliver a certified copy of this Resolution and a copy of the Certificate of Award to the County Auditor.

Section 13. <u>Bond Counsel</u>. In connection with the issuance of the Bonds herein authorized, the law firm of Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P. is hereby retained to act as bond counsel to the County.

Section 14. Other Determinations. This Board determines that all acts and conditions necessary to be performed by the County or to have been met precedent to and in the issuing of the Bonds in order to make them legal, valid and binding special obligations of the County have been performed and have been met, or will at the time of delivery of the Bonds have been performed and have been met, in regular and due form as required by law; that the Pledged Revenues (as described in Section 7) of the County are pledged for the timely payment of the debt charges on the Bonds; and that no statutory or constitutional limitation of indebtedness or taxation will have been exceeded in the issuance of the Bonds.

Section 15. Compliance with Open Meeting Requirements. This Board finds and determines that all formal actions of this Board and any of its committees concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Board or its committees and that all deliberations of this Board and any of its committees that resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the public in compliance with the law.

Section 16. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption.

Upon roll call on the adoption of the Resolution, the vote was as follows:

Vote on Motion	Mr. Ward	Aye	Mr. Jordan	Nay	Mr. Evans	Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 08-933

IN THE MATTER OF ADJOURNING INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR CONSIDERATION OF APPOINTMENT, EMPLOYMENT, DISMISSAL, DISCIPLINE, PROMOTION, DEMOTION OR COMPENSATION OF A PUBLIC EMPLOYEE OR PUBLIC OFFICIAL:

It was moved by Mr. Jordan, seconded by Mr. Evans to adjourn into Executive Session at 10:25AM.

Vote on Motion Mr. Evans Aye Mr. Jordan Aye Mr. Ward Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 08-934

IN THE MATTER OF ADJOURNING OUT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Evans to adjourn out of Executive Session at 11:00AM.

Vote on Motion	Mr. Jordan	Aye	Mr. Evans	Aye	Mr. Ward	Aye
----------------	------------	-----	-----------	-----	----------	-----

There being no further business the meeting adjourned.

Glenn A. Evans

Kristopher W. Jordan

James D. Ward

Letha George, Clerk to the Commissioners